From: R1DRSSMail Resource

To: R1LAT RESOURCE

Subject: Update of USNRC material license 45-31299-01
Date: Monday, July 21, 2025 10:39:44 AM
Attachments: BTL Org Chart Working Copy (1).pdf

NRC Form 532 (Amendment - RSO NOW MARK XU).pdf
Signed Application for Materials License.pdf
Signed letter to NRC re new RSO.pdf

From: Mark Xu <mark.xu@theratronics.ca>

Sent: Monday, July 21, 2025 9:41 AM

To: R1DRSSMail Resource <R1DRSSMail.Resource@nrc.gov>

Cc: Lauri Luxton <lauri@teambest.com>; Marilee Jackson
<marilee.jackson@theratronics.ca>

Subject: [External_Sender] Update of USNRC material license 45-31299-01

Hi There,

Hi this is Mark Xu. I'm the new RSO of Best Theratronics, which possesses
material license #45-31299-01. We would like to update our RSO (replace Steve
Muldoon with Mark Xu in section 13B). We would also like to update section 13A,
and replace Mark Vennor with Andrei Ciresianu. Attached is our form 313 as well
as organization chart. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to
contact me.

Thank You
Mark

Mark Xu

Radiation Safety Officer
Best Theratronics

413 March Road
Ottawa, ON
613-591-2100 ext 2762


mailto:R1DRSSMail.Resource@nrc.gov
mailto:R1LAT.RESOURCE@nrc.gov

NRC FORM 313 U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

(09-11-2024) .

T

a7.30.and40 § W mg ‘g-; APPLICATION FOR
Ky ) MATERIALS LICENSE

APPROVED BY OMB: NO. 3150-0120 EXPIRES: 07/31/2026
Estimated burden per response to comply with this mandatory collection request 4.3 hours. Submittal of the application is
y to d that the tis qualified and that adequate procadures exist to protact the public health and safety.
Seml comments legal'dlng burden estimate to the FOIA, Library, and Information Collections Branch (T-8 A10M), U.S. Nuclear
gulatory Ci gton, DC 20555-0001, or by email to Infocollacts. Resource@nrc.gov, and the OMB Reviewer at:
OMB Office of Information and Regulatory Affairs, (3150-0120), Attn: Desk Officer for the Nuclear Regulatory Commission, 725
17th Street NW, Washington, DC 20503. The NRG may not conduct o sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a
collection of information unless the document requesting or requiring the collection displays a currently vaid OMB control§
number.

INSTRUCTIONS: SEE THE CURRENT VOLUMES OF THE NUREG-1556 TECHNICAL REPO
INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THIS FORM: http://www.nre.govireading-rm/doc-
OFFICE SPECIFIED BELOW.

et e e e e e e e e e e ——
APPLICATION FOR DISTRIBUTION OF EXEMPT PRODUCTS FILE APPLICATIONS WITH:

MATERIALS SAFETY AND TRIBAL LIAISON BRANCH

DIVISION OF MATERIALS SAFETY, SECURITY, STATE AND TRIBAL PROGRAMS
OFFICE OF NUCLEAR MATERIALS SAFETY AND SAFEGUARDS

U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, DC 20555-0001

ALL OTHER PERSONS FILE APPLICATIONS AS FOLLOWS:
IF YOU ARE LOCATED IN:

ALABAMA, CONNECTICUT, DELAWARE, DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA, FLORIDA,
GEORGIA, KENTUCKY, MAINE, MARYLAND, MASSACHUSETTS, NEW HAMPSHIRE,
NEW JERSEY, NEW YORK, NORTH CAROLINA, PENNSYLVANIA, PUERTO RICO,
RHODE ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA, TENNESSEE, VERMONT, VIRGINIA, VIRGIN
ISLANDS, OR WEST VIRGINIA,

SEND APPLICATIONS TO:

LICENSING ASSISTANCE TEAM

DIVISION OF RADIOLOGICAL SAFETY AND SECURITY

U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION, REGION |

475 ALLENDALE ROAD, SUITE 102

KING OF PRUSSIA, PA 19406-1415

R1DRSSMail.Resource@nrc.goy

*Note: The preferred method to submit NRC Form 313 is email. Any other document (e. g.
financial assurance documents) should be sent via mail

RT SERIES (“CONSOLIDATED GUIDANCE ABOUT MATERIALS LICENSES") FOR DETAILED
I gs/stalllsr1556/. SEND ONE COPY OF THE COMPLETED APPLICATION TO THE NRC

e e e
IF YOU ARE LOCATED IN:

ILLINOIS, INDIANA, IOWA, MICHIGAN, MINNESOTA, MISSOURI, OHIO, OR WISCONSIN, SEND
APPLICATIONS TO:

MATERIALS LICENSING BRANCH

DIVISION OF RADIOLOGICAL SAFETY AND SECURITY

U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION, REGION IIl

2056 WESTINGS AVENUE, SUITE 400

NAPERVILLE, IL 60563-2657

R3-DRSSMAIL Resource@nrc.gov

“Note: The preferred method to submit NRC Form 313 is email. Any other document (e.g., financial
assurance documents) should be sent via mail

IF YOU ARE LOCATED IN:

ALASKA, ARIZONA, ARKANSAS, CALIFORNIA, COLORADO, HAWAII, IDAHO, KANSAS,
LOUISIANA, MISSISSIPPI, MONTANA, NEBRASKA, NEVADA, NEW MEXICO, NORTH
DAKOTA, OKLAHOMA, OREGON, PACIFIC TRUST TERRITORIES, SOUTH DAKOTA, TEXAS,
UTAH, WASHINGTON, OR WYOMING,

SEND APPLICATIONS TO:

MATERIALS LICENSING BRANCH

DIVISION OF RADIOLOGICAL SAFETY AND SECURITY

U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION, REGION IV

1600 E. LAMAR BOULEVARD

ARLINGTON, TX 76011-4511

Rdlicensingddnre.gov

*Note: The preferred method to submit NRC Form 313 is email. Any other document (e.g., financial
assurance documents) should be sent via mail

IN STATES SUBJECT TO U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION JURISDICTIONS.

PERSONS LOCATED IN AGREEMENT STATES SEND APPLICATIONS TO THE U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION ONLY IF THEY WISH TO POSSESS AND USE LICENSED MATERIAL

1. THIS IS AN APPLICATION FOR (Check appropriate item)
I:l A NEWLICENSE

45-31299-01

B. AMENDMENT TO LICENSE NUMBER

D C. RENEWAL OF LICENSE NUMBER

2. NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS OF APPLICANT (include zip code)

Best Theratronics, Ltd.
413 March Road
Ottawa, ON K2K 0E4

3. LIST ADDRESS AND/IOR TEMPORARY JOB SITE (TJS) ADDRESS, WHERE LICENSED
MATERIALS WILL BE USED OR POSSESSED

413 March Road,
Ottawa, ON, Canada
K2K OE4

- e ———— R
SUBMIT ITEMS 5 THROUGH 11 ON 8-1/2 X 11" PAPER. THE TYPE AND SCOPE OF INFORMATION 10 BE PROVIDED 1S DESCRIBED IN THE APPLICABLE GENSING GUIDANGE.

4. NAME OF PERSON TO BE CONTACTED ABOUT THIS APPLICATION

Mark Xu

BUSINESS TELEPHONE NUMBER

613-591-2100 ext 2762

BUSINESS E-MAIL ADDRESS
mark.xu@theratronics.ca

BUSINESS CELLULAR TELEPHONE NUMBER

5. RADIOACTIVE MATERIAL

a. Element and mass number, b. chemical and/for physical form; and c. maximum amount
which will be possessed at any one time

6. PURPOSE(S) FOR WHICH LICENSED MATERIAL WILL BE USED

7. INDIVIDUAL(S) RESPONSIBLE FOR RADIATION SAFETY PROGRAM AND THEIR TRAINING AND
EXPERIENCE.

8. TRAINING FOR INDIVIDUALS WORKING IN OR FREQUENTING RESTRICTED AREAS

9. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT

10. RADIATION SAFETY PROGRAM

11. WASTE MANAGEMENT

12. LICENSE FEES (Fees required only for new applicalions, with few exceptions*)
(See 10 CFR 170 and Section 170.31)

*Amendments/Renewals that increase the scope of the existing license to a new or higher fee category will require a fee.

FEE
CATEGORY

AMOUNT
ENCLOSED

N/A 0.00

PER THE DEBT COLLECTION IMPROVEMENT ACT OF 1996 (PUBLIC LAW 104-134), YOU ARE REQUIRED TO PROVIDE YOUR TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER. PROVIDE THIS
INFORMATION BY COMPLETING NRC FORM 531: hitpsi/iwww.nre.govireading-rm/doc-collections/forms/nre831info,html. FAX THE COMPLETED NRC FORM 531 TO (301) 415-6725.

THE APPLICANT

TO THE BEST OF THEIR KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF

13. CERTIFICATION. (Must be completed by applicant) THE APPLICANT UNDERSTANDS THAT ALL STATEMENTS AND REPRESENTATIONS MADE IN THIS APPLICATION ARE BINDING UPON

THE APPLICANT AND ANY OFFICIAL EXECUTING THIS CERTIFICATION ON BEHALF OF THE APPLICANT, NAMED IN ITEM 2, CERTIFY THAT THIS APPLICATION IS PREPARED IN
CONFORMITY WITH TITLE 10, CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, PARTS 30. 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 37, 39, AND 40, AND THAT ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS TRUE AND CORRECT

WARNING: 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1001 ACT OF JUNE 25, 1948 62 STAT. 749 MAKES IT A CRIMINAL OFFENSE TO MAKE A WILLFULLY FALSE STATEMENT OR REPRESENTATION TO
ANY DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY OF THE UNITED STATES AS TO ANY MATTER WITHIN ITS JURIS[I)ICTION

CERTIFYING OFFICER - TYPED/PRINTED NAME AND TITLE SIGNATURE DATE
i Suthanthiran, President —7] / /
Krishnan thiran, ; C)/ yc\,_-
FOR NRC USE ONLY ey
TYPE OF FEE FEE LOG FEE CATEGORY SAMDUNT RECEIVED |CHECK NUMBER |COMMENTS
APPROVED BY DATE

NRC FORM 313 (09-11-2024)



Best Theratronics Ltd. - Canada

President
Krishnan Suthanthiran

General Counsel
James Brady

Consultant, Kitsault Energy
Anne-Marie DiFusco

May 15, 2025

Director, Engineering
& EBTS Sales
Andrei Ciresianu
Andrei Ciresianu

Senior Consultant
Pietro Zanetti
Operations Manager

See Page 4

Logistics
Coordinator
Clemens Schroder

Sales and Service
Victoriya Gogitidze
Bassmah Khalig
Nada Roszman-Cotic

Service Inventory Analyst

VACANT

Human Resources
Andre Vachon

Manager Production
Planning
Interim Pietro Zanetti

]

Senior Accountant

Accounts Receivable
Debbie Guitor

| Business Analyst
VACANT

| Accounts Payable
Clerk
— Kimberley Parsons

| Shu Hong LiI—,J:l.LLm.an_R'esource
Administrative

Supply Chain Manager
Matthew Maxwell

Assistant
Renee Lamothe

Payroll & Benefits
Administrator
Rusul Al-Saedi

Global Sales Manager

Quality & Regulatory
Manager

Dan Aitkenhead Jessica Wolfe

Radiation Safety
ASSOC. Manager
RSO
Mark Xu

Director of Business
Development — Middle East
LAYOFF

See Page 3

Computer Systems
Technician

Nishit Patel

Material Control Clerk
——Leanne Mevon-Usher
Joyce Caughey Lay Off

Buyer
—Jonathan Asedri
Lay Off

" Paul McCheyne

Vaccum
—Technician
Todd Evans

BMC & Sales and Customer
Service Supervisor
Rashad Alnader

Best Medical
Electronic Technician
Carlos Rodas

Best Medical
Technologist/Product
Specialist
Manal Alnemer
Omran Alsaid
I
Best Medical
Customer Service
Negar Borjian




Best Theratronics Ltd. - Canada

President
Krishnan Suthanthiran

Quality and Regulatory
Manager
Jessica Mayda

—_— 1

———Compliance Specialist
Amanda Barriage

Compliance Specialist
Christin Sojan

Shaivi Saini

Interim Shaivi Saini

QC Supervisor
David Devoe
LAYOFF

Electrical/Electronic
—Inspector
Vien Pham

Darryl Gow
James Thuot

Documentation Specialist

Central Records/Phones

Mechanical Inspector

Radiation Safety
RSO
Mark Xu

Radiation Safety
Specialist
Marilee Jackson

Isotope Supply & Production
Specialist
VACANT

May 15, 2025



Best Theratronics Ltd. - Canada

Manager Production
Planning
Interim Pietro Zanetti

Production Supervisor

Production Supervisor

VACANT VACANT
— ]
— Machinists Assembler A/B

Timothy Mahoney
Chun Lin Wang

Welders
Stirling Bennett

|___Maintenance Mechanic
VACANT

| John Inglis

|__Sheet Metal Worker
Shane Barr

Travis Dagg A
— Jason Koziol A
Chris Borutski

Mit Shah

I— Assembly/Machinist
VACANT

Technician
Steve Labelle CH
Rey Tordesillas

|__Packaging Mechanic
Dale Rath CH

Electronic
—Assembler A
Jose Vasquez A

| Paint Shop
John Inglis

Lead Pourer/Machine Operator

Machining
Process Specialist
VACANT

Production Planning
Technologist
Ritej Chopra

I~ Production Planner Senior
VACANT

Production Planners

| Electronic Production

VACANT

—— Production Engineer
VACANT

I Building Maintenance
Rocco Barresi (Dec 22)
Aubrey Maillet

— Facilities Maintenance
Specialist
TBD

Production Controllers
*— Erica Leduc

1

Stores
Supervisor
LAYOFF

1

Senior Storeskeeper
Pete Falardeau

Storeskeeper

Ronaldo Bay A
— KyleKilleen A

Shane Cormier B

May 15, 2025



Best Theratronics Ltd. - Canada

President
Krishnan Suthanthiran

Director
Andrei Ciresianu Interim
Technical Servies

Technical Services
—Assistant
Lori Gulis

___Technical Service Representative
Juan Casprowitz
Scott Baker
Andrew Zaborski
Oleksii Konovalenko

__UK Service
David Horler

__Technical Trainer
TBD

Service Contracts
—Specialist
TBD

Director, Engineering &
EBTS Sales
Andrei Ciresianu

Customer Service & logistics

nterim

Engineering Specialist
Bruce Braidek
Martin Brown

Mechanical Designer
VACANT

Medical Physicist
VACANT

Development Technician
VACANT

Senior QC Technician
Heather Evans

Software Developer
Prathipa Ragothaman

—| Design Specialist

TBD

| Electrical Designer

| TBA

| Senior Designer
Terry Young

| Software Engineer
Edmond Kwong

—— Technical Publications Co-ordinator
Bill Watters

L TDA - Transport Packaging
TBD

—— TDA - SCI
Wilodzimierz Kaszuba

Engineering Co- op
VACANT

May 15, 2025



Best Theratronics Ltd. - Canada

Best Cyclotron Systems

President
Krishnan Suthanthiran

Cyclotron Team
(Ottawa)
Pietro Zanetti

— Sr. Control

VACANT

— Vacuum
Technician
Todd Evans

— Engineer
TBA

I Cyclotron
Technologist
VACANT

System Engineer

1
Vasille Sabaiduc
Director of Cyclotron
Operations
Best Cyclotrom Systems Inc.

1
Senior Scientist

Web f Vladimir Ryjkov
Adnj|n|§trator Mechanilcal
David Kind )
Technologist

| Benjamin Babafemi
Research LAYOFF
Engineer (ltaly) |
TBD Senior Mechanical

) —
Junior Mechanical

Engineer
Teodor Boiesan

Engineer 1
VACANT Senior Controls
Engineer
David Du
r 1
Mechanical Designer Electronics
Shelly Talmor Technologist
Linda Du

I
Chemical Engineer
Michal Mrstik

Junior Mechanical
Engineer

May 15, 2025
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